MEETING MINUTES
GROUNDWATER WASTEWATER DISCHARGE CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2025
ROPEWALK ROOM
26 COURT ST • PLYMOUTH, MA 02360


Meeting Called to Order: 6:00 PM

Members Present: Josh Bows, Mark Champagne, Martin Enos, Rose Forbes (Clerk), David Golden (Chair)

Members Absent: Bill Doyle, Hampton Watkins (Vice-Chair) 

Others in Attendance: Doug Pinard (Department of Public Works [DPW] virtually via Teams) and members of the public

MEETING MINUTES
[bookmark: _Hlk183508204]Mr. David Golden asked the CAC if there were any comments on the June 23, 2025 meeting minutes. Ms. Rose Forbes noted the meeting minutes stated the CAC recommendation was scheduled for Aug 25th; however, the recommendation has been postponed.  She suggested the language be amended to state the CAC recommendation will be made at a future committee meeting.  Mr. Golden asked for a motion to accept the minutes as amended with the revised language. Mr. Josh Bows made a motion to accept the minutes as amended and Mr. Marty Enos seconded the motion. The motion passed five in favor, none against, and two not present. 

	Substance
	Approve June 23, 2025 Meeting Minutes

	Last Name
	First Name
	Yes
	No
	Abstain
	No Vote
	Not Present

	Bows
	Josh
	X
	
	
	
	

	Champagne
	Mark
	X
	
	
	
	

	Doyle
	Bill
	
	
	
	
	X

	Enos
	Martin
	X
	
	
	
	

	Forbes
	Rose
	X
	
	
	
	

	Watkins
	Hampton
	
	
	
	
	X

	Golden
	David
	X
	
	
	
	

	TOTALS
	5
	0
	0
	0
	2




PUBLIC COMMENT
Ms. Darlene Nickerson, owner of Gilbert Trout Hatchery and Black Feather Horse Rescue located along Warren Wells Brook, expressed concern about contamination and water levels if the additional wastewater discharge goes to the infiltration beds.  She informed the CAC about the animals on her property and potential impacts to their health.  She recommended staying with the ocean discharge and conducting tertiary treatment on the wastewater.   

Mr. Jeffrey Enos lives on Russell Mill Pond and stated he has lived in Plymouth for 60 years, as well as prior generations of his family.  He stated he had no issues at the Pond until the last four years.  This past year there were two full months of cyanobacteria growth, which is caused by nutrient enrichment from nitrate and phosphate.  He wants to know what the options are to address treated wastewater.  He stated that all residents who live in Mill Pond Landing are on private wells.  He mentioned the removal of the cranberry bog in 2009 was supposed to solve the issues with nutrients but emphasized there continue to be significant issues in the Pond.  He wants to know if the treated wastewater is causing issues in the bay, will it also cause impacts to the groundwater if discharged to the infiltration beds.   He mentioned per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) at Saint-Gobain impacted peoples’ health and wanted to know if PFAS could be an issue with the treated wastewater.

Ms. Mary Gatslick lives on Jordan Road and backs up to the Eel River.  She stated the previous Environmental Impact Report (EIR) had errors in the phosphate data and asked if the errors have been corrected in the new Draft EIR.  She is also concerned about the type of waste being treated at the wastewater treatment plant, the numbers of homes impacted, and bringing in waste from out of Town.  She asked if the wastewater treatment plant treats waste with radionuclides and industrial waste.  She stated the EIR mentions the ocean discharge will be retained as an option for use during emergencies and wanted to know what those emergencies might include.  She also noted that sand used as a filter in tertiary treatment is not effective for many contaminants and stated tertiary treatment should employ more technologies.  

Mr. Dan Enos stated he has lived on Russell Mill Pond for 75 years.  He recalled a study by McGuire Engineering that stated a sewer treatment plant shouldn’t be placed in the Eel River watershed. Ten to fifteen years later the Town hired another engineering company that said a wastewater treatment plant could be sited in the current location but the treated wastewater shouldn’t be discharged to the groundwater.  He further stated the Town allowed the development of Camelot Park but the mitigation measures were never completed.  Mr. Enos also stated the Town removed a small pond in the Upper Mill Pond but never asked the property owner’s permission.  As a result, the herring migration was disrupted and the spawning beds were removed. He stated the wastewater discharge will damage Warren Wells Brook and Eel River and will be an environmental disaster.  He also stated the Town accumulates methane and chlorine gas and injects it into the ground at Warren Wells Brook and asked if that was the source of bubbles in Russell Mill Pond.  He asked if the Town could explore other options such as (1) extending the pipeline beyond the breakwater, (2) stop taking sewage from other towns, and (3) run a new discharge line to the highway, M Road, past the Plimoth Pawtuxet Museum, to beyond Bert’s (estimated the cost as $3 to $5 million). He suggested that Duxbury and Kingston could help pay for the pipe extension.   Mr. Enos also asked why the wastewater isn’t treated better.  

Mr. Matt Hoagland lives on Sandwich Road and wanted to better understand the comment/response process and asked if this meeting is considered a formal comment period.  Mr. David Golden responded that it is not a formal comment meeting.  Mr. Hoagland asked if there was any other announcement about this meeting.  Mr. Golden responded that this meeting is published like other meetings and the agenda is included on the Town website.  Mr. Hoagland asked if a Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) is being developed for the Plymouth-Kingston-Duxbury (PKD) bays.   He requested a full analyses and calculations on the nitrogen and phosphorus ratios.  He suggested it would be beneficial for a TMDL study to be conducted for the Eel River to have a better understanding of the sources of nitrogen and phosphorus.  He stated that if the wastewater treatment plant starts discharging to the groundwater, then it becomes a background that others must live with.  He asked how the nutrient management plan accounts for the nutrients in stormwater and the impacts on the Eel River and how the stormwater is considered when mixed with the wastewater discharges.
Mr. Matt Glynn has lived in Plymouth for 30 years and spends much of his time trying to keep Plymouth pristine.  He stated he is an abutter in Camelot Park and is part owner of the wind turbine.   He is concerned about the impacts of contamination on the aquifer if the treated wastewater discharge is diverted to the infiltration beds.

Mr. Brian Kuhn is a part owner of the Camelot Park wind turbine with Mr. Glynn.  He stated the wind turbine was designed for the conditions at the time and he is concerned with the hydraulic impacts on the turbine stability if more wastewater is discharged to the infiltration beds.  

Ms. Gatslick expressed concern about drinking water wells downgradient of the wastewater treatment plant and  asked if the Town established a baseline prior to switching to switching to the infiltration beds.  

Mr. Tom Fugazzi stated he has attended all the CAC meetings and asked several questions but doesn’t feel like he has received good answers.  He would like to know why this change in the discharge location is being proposed.  He also reiterated his concerns with the flow throughout the Eel River Watershed.   

MEETING SCHEDULE
The next meeting is scheduled for Oct 27, 2025 in the Rope Walk Room.

ADJOURN
Meeting adjourned at 6:46 pm.

Respectfully Submitted,
Rose Forbes, Clerk





